
 

   

AGENDA FOR LIBRARY BOARD RETREAT AND PUBLIC MEETING  
 

DATE: Saturday, March 18, 2023 Board retreat at 9:00am, business meeting at 4:00pm 
LOCATION: Three Creeks Community Library, 800-C NE Tenney Road, Vancouver, WA 98685 

The Public is welcome to attend. Limited seating will be available. Zoom option available starting at 4:00pm. 
 

9:00 am Welcome and Work Session Logistics - Kristy and Amelia 

9:15 am Junior Taxing Districts - information - Amelia 

10:00 am Public Records Act - Morgan Damerow, WA Assistant State Attorney General 

10:45 am  15 minute break 

11:00 am Open Public Meetings Act - Morgan Damerow 

12:00 pm Intellectual Freedom - Dr. Tamara Meredith, Jefferson County Library District  

 Lunch 

1:00 pm Board Roles and Responsibilities - Daniel Gottlieb, Attorney 

3:00 pm Board Roundtable -  open discussion on any topic  

3:45 pm 15 minute break 

Board Meeting Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85692841522 
Meeting ID: 856 9284 1522 
Passcode: 202419 or Dial by your location +1 206 337 9723 US (Seattle) 

 Agenda Approval  

 Call to Order 

 Chair Announcements 

 Public Comments 

INFORMATION Reports: 
Organizational Report: Mary Abler, Deputy Director 
Three Creeks Community Library Report: Elizabeth Moss, Branch Manager 
FVRL Financial Statements: Attar Bhangal, Finance Manager 

ACTION Consent Agenda: 
Minutes Approval: February 21, 2023 
FVRL Expenditure Approval: Reviewed by Penny Love-Henslee 

 
INFORMATION 

INFORMATION 

ACTION 

ACTION 

INFORMATION 

Business: 
Employee Handbook Policy (redline review)  
2023 Budget Document  
Material Recovery Fee – Lynne Caldwell (Res. 2023-09) 
Surplus Computer Equipment – Attar Bhangal (Res. 2023-10) 
Foundation MOU Committee - Update 

 Executive Session: RCW 42.30.110 (1g) - Personnel  

 Board Comments 

 Setting of Next Regular Meeting – Monday, April 17, 2023 (Hybrid/Washougal) 

 Adjournment 

Page 1 of 92



March 2023 - ORGANIZATIONAL REPORT

1. COVID-19 Service & Staffing Response
● Rescinded Additional Rules of Conduct Policy
● Continuing to follow protocols for illness

2. Capital Projects
● Woodland Community Library

○ Completed estimates on 100% design development
○ Approved start of construction drawings
○ Groundbreaking planning

● Grand Boulevard building
○ Drywall complete
○ Plumbing, HVAC and electrical continuing

3. Executive Director’s Highlights: February 22 to March 17, 2023
● FVRL Leadership Academy
● Woodland Library - 100% design development estimate completed
● Supervisor’s meeting
● Early Childhood Education Advisory Committee (Clark College)
● Build the Libraries meeting
● Battle Ground Friends - Operations Center tour
● City of Washougal - Civic Master Plan
● Women Who Mean Business - Vancouver Chamber of Commerce
● Vancouver carpet close out - punch walk
● John Chrastka - EveryLibrary - Washington State Library
● City of Woodland - intergovernmental exchange of property
● Grand Blvd. Operations Center - Owner/Architect/Contractor meetings
● Public Libraries of Washington Legislative Committee
● Clark County Councilors - Vancouver library tours
● Public Libraries of Washington
● Furniture review - Grand Blvd.
● Grand Boulevard - Q&A
● Quarterly staff reviews

Page 2 of 92



 Three Creeks Strategic Priority Report 
 February 2023 

 Equity 
 Laura led a special Valentine’s pajama storytime in the evening of February 8th. It was great to 
 have an evening storytime. Parents were appreciative of the opportunity to take their children to 
 storytime - some parents work during regular storytime hours and some older children were able 
 to join their younger siblings in a special storytime. 

 Partnerships 
 We partnered with Ren Locus and VITA to provide tax help for our patrons. VITA is providing 
 free tax help, with an emphasis on low-income, disabilities, and English language learners. They 
 are in the library almost every Friday and Saturday through tax season. 

 The library partnered with SHARE for an Every 28 Day donation drive, collecting menstrual 
 hygiene products for the community. 

 Connections 
 Noah’s Ark Preschool came to the library for a special storytime and an opportunity to learn 
 about the library on February 22nd. This was scheduled to be a two-day event with half the 
 classes coming on the 22nd and half on the 23rd. The classes scheduled for the 23rd have 
 been rescheduled to March. 

 Glendyne shared her collection of snowmen in our Lobby Display case this month. 

Page 3 of 92



 Organizational Culture 
 Lisa attended the  Northwest Regional Equity Conference  the week of February 20th.  We look 
 forward to hearing her report on the sessions she chose to attend. 

 Andy attended FVRL’s leadership training on Performance Management, Feedback, and 
 Coaching on February 22nd. 

 Angela completed the First Aid/CPR course on the 22nd. 

 Elizabeth participated in the interview panel for the Collection Development Librarian position on 
 February 28th. 

 Due to inclement weather - the library closed two hours early on February 22nd. The library was 
 closed all day on February 23rd. The library opened from 11 - 4 on February 24th. 

 Family Storytime on February 27th was canceled due to anticipated ceiling repairs. 
 Unfortunately, the contractor needed to reschedule the repairs, which will hopefully happen 
 sometime in March. 

Page 4 of 92



December 31, 2022 Ending Cash Balance $20,940,100
Year-to-date Revenue Received $139,351
Year-to-date Expenditures -$2,580,351

Add back Expenditures incurred but unpaid -$63,167

Cash Balance January 31, 2023 $18,435,933

January 1, 2023 Starting Cash Balance: $20,940,100
January 31, 2023 Ending Cash Balance: $18,435,933
Reserve Plan Objectives 1-5: -$12,040,426
Operational Reserve; should be a minimum of 17% of annual operational budget $6,395,507
(Variance occurs due to when property tax revenue is received)

Operational Reserve; should be a minimum of 17% of annual operational budget $6,395,507

Reserve Fund

     Objective 1 Capital Repairs and Maintenance $750,000

     Objective 2 Replacement Vehicles $98,380

     Objective 3 Capital Projects  
          Washougal (YTD expense $55,136) $2,992,678

          Woodland $2,415,536

         Grand Blvd. Remodel $2,800,000

         Brush Prairie $500,000

          Unrestricted Capital $519,306

     Objective 4 Innovation $100,000

     Objective 5 Budget Stabilization Fund 1,864,526

Total Reserve Plan Objectives 1-5 $12,040,426
Operational Fund > 60 to 90 days of annual operational budget $6,395,507

Cash Balance January 31, 2023 $18,435,933

Restatement of cash balance with cash reserve plan detail -

January 01, 2023 - December 31, 2023 Fiscal Year

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement Of Cash

For the Month Ending January 2023 (With year-to-date totals)

Restatement of cash balance with cash reserve plan summary -

Page 5 of 92



001311.10.01 25,300,000              43,552               43,552 0.17%
015311.10.02 690,000                7,737                 7,737 1.12%
010311.10.03 1,315,000              14,101               14,101 1.07%
311.10.04 315,000                1,381                 1,381 0.44%

Total Property Taxes 27,620,000              66,770               66,770 0.24%

Other Taxes
020312.10. Other General Tax                     25,000              22,283               22,283 89.13%
318.20 Leasehold Excise Tax 95,000                7,329                 7,329 7.72%

Total Other Taxes 120,000              29,613               29,613 24.68%

Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts
030332.00 Federal in-lieu of Taxes 15,000                5,855                 5,855 39.04%
035335.05 State Forest Boards 150,000                3,606                 3,606 2.40%
045333.00 State Grants                     25,000                      -                         -   -
052338.7 Yale Valley Library Dist 180,000                      -                         -   0.00%
054338.72 Contracts - Clark County Jail 500                      -                         -   0.00%

Total Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts 370,500                9,462                 9,462 2.55%

Charges for Services
080341.60 Equipment Use Fees 20,000                1,936                 1,936 9.68%
085347.21 Non-Resident Borrower Fee 6,000                   209                    209 3.48%

090347.90 Lost / Damaged Material Fee 25,000                   598                    598 2.39%
092347.50 Collection Agency Referral Fee 0                     90                      90 0.00%

Total Charges for Services 51,000                2,833                 2,833 5.56%

Miscellaneous
095361.11 Investment Interest                   200,000              28,046               28,046 14.02%
105362.00 Rental Income                       1,000                      -                         -   0.00%
120367.10 Gifts/Contributions                     15,000                   145                    145 0.97%
122369.90 Library Friends Groups' Reimbursements                   300,000                1,034                 1,034 0.34%
369.90 Library Foundation Reimbursements                2,500,000                1,117                 1,117 0.04%

130369.40 Insurance Reimbursements                       2,500                      -                         -   0.00%
135369.90 Miscellaneous                       2,500                     62                      62 2.48%
367.1 Private Grants                     50,000                      -                         -   0.00%

145369.90 Other Miscellaneous - E-Rate                   150,000                      -                         -   0.00%
395.00 Sale of Assets                     20,000                   268                    268 1.34%

150395.10 Proceeds from the Sale of Property 0                      -                         -   0.00%Total Miscellaneous 3,241,000              30,673               30,673 0.95%

Total Operating Revenue 31,402,500$           139,351           139,351            0.44%

Transfer in from Reserves 2,500,000$               -                   -                    0.00%

Total Revenues and Transfer from Reserve $            33,902,500            139,351             139,351 0.41%

January is the 1st month of the fiscal 
year. Year-to-date budget percentages 
should be at 8.33%, representing 1/12 
months.

Property Taxes - Cowlitz
Property Taxes - Klickitat

 2023 Budget  
(Approved 12/22)

Property Taxes - Skamania

Jan.-Dec. 2023 Fiscal Year

Property Taxes
Property Taxes - Clark

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement Of Revenue - Calendar Year 2023

For the Month Ending January 2023 (With year-to-date totals)

 January 2023 
Revenues 

Year-to-Date 
Totals thru

 January 2023

Year - to - Date 
Annual Budget 

Percent

Page 6 of 92



0
1

12,750,000           1,015,071 1,015,071 7.96%

2,300,000              187,020 187,020 8.13%

240,000                21,150 21,150 8.81%

75,000                12,466 12,466 16.62%

1,324,725              102,583 102,583 7.74%

975,375                76,170 76,170 7.81%

100,000                  5,843 5,843 5.84%

27,785                  2,217 2,217 7.98%

0
1

10,000                        -   0 0.00%

17,802,885           1,422,519 1,422,519 7.99%

0
2

458,000                25,986 25,986 5.67%

0
2

250,000                13,682 13,682 5.47%

462,000                     248 248 0.05%

300,000                32,118 32,118 10.71%

1,470,000                72,034 72,034 4.90%

0
0
3

1,903,500                81,587 81,587 4.29%

0
3

1,896,500              165,449 165,449 8.72%

3,800,000              247,036 247,036 6.50%

0
4

2,079,225              115,651 115,651 5.56%

0
4

410,000                48,736 48,736 11.89%

0
4

108,000                  7,414 7,414 6.86%

0
4

30,000                     880 880 2.93%

0
4

560,000                54,634 54,634 9.76%

0
4

250,000                  6,502 6,502 2.60%

0
4

450,000                41,971 41,971 9.33%

0
4

870,000                14,800 14,800 1.70%

0
4

163,750                24,230 24,230 14.80%

0
4

3,640                     493 493 13.54%

4,924,615              315,310 315,310 6.40%

0
5

         300,000                        -                                   -   0.00%

0
5

      5,500,000              522,582                        522,582 9.50%

595.62            40,000                        -                                   -   0.00%

0
5

           65,000                     870                               870 1.34%

      5,905,000              523,452                        523,452 8.86%

    33,902,500 2,580,351          2,580,351                   7.61%

January is the 1st month of the fiscal year. Year-
to-date budget percentages should be at 8.33%, 
representing 1/12 months.

572.42

572.46

Other Charges & Services Subtotal:

Machinery & Equipment594.64

594.62

594.62

Grand Total All Expenditures:

Yale

Capital Outlay

Insurance

Advertising

572.49

572.50 Intergovernmental Services

Repairs & Maintenance572.48

Buildings / Owned

Jan.-Dec. 2023 Fiscal Year

572.45

572.34

Professional Services

Utilities

Misc / Dues / Printing / Other

Rentals / Leases

Training / Travel

Capital Outlay Subtotal:

Buildings / Non-Owned

572.47

572.44

Library Materials Subtotal:

Electronic Resources

Year to Date 
Annual Budget 

Percentage

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

572.24

572.22

572.30

Year-to-Date 
Totals thru

 January 2023
 January 2023 
Expenditures 

Personnel  

Supplies

Statement of Expenses - Calendar Year 2023

Wages 

For the Month Ending January 2023 (With year-to-date totals)

Unemployment Expense

572.25

572.25

572.24

Personnel Subtotal:

Benefit - Medical

Benefit - FICA

Benefit - PFML

Benefit - L & I - Workers Compensation

Benefit - Life, LTD, AD&D

572.39

Small Equipment (FF&E)

572.24

572.28

572.35

572.38

572.33 Professional Collection / Tech

Supplies & Small Equipmt/Tech Subtotal:

 2023 Budget  
(Approved 

12/22)

572.41

572.43

Other Services / Charges

Communications

Benefit - PERS

Library Books / Materials

572.21

Supplies

Bars

572.10

Benefit - Dental

Technology

Library Books & Materials

Description

Page 7 of 92



   

  

Public Meeting Minutes 
  

 
Date: Tuesday, February 21, 2023 

Time:  6:00 PM Regular Meeting 

Location:  In Person:  Vancouver Community Library,  901 C Street; Vancouver, WA 
  
Call to Order  6:01 PM 

Chair Morgan, called the regular meeting to order. 

Attendees 

Board Members Present:  Kristy Morgan, Megan Dugan, Penny Love-Henslee, Olga Hodges, 
Marie Coffey 
Board Members Present via Zoom: Vikram Kotwani, Mary Ann Duncan-Cole 
Administrative Team: Amelia Shelley, Executive Director; Deputy Director, Mary Abler; 
Executive Assistant and Recorder, Rhonda Kay Calkins; Collection & Technology Services 
Director, Lynne Caldwell; Communications & Marketing Director, Tak Kendrick; Human 
Resources Director, Lee Strehlow; Guests: Vancouver Mall Branch Manager, Brandon Cruz 

 

Agenda Approval 6:02 PM 

Ms. Shelley requested to amend the agenda to include the Additional Rules of Conduct policy under 
7.1.   

Motion: Chair Morgan 
1st: Ms. Dugan  
2nd: Ms. Love-Henslee 
The motion carried unanimously.  

Chair Announcements 6:04 PM 

Public Comments - Note: Next meeting time limit will be reduced to two minutes.  

1. In support of DQSH 
a. Katherine Gardner, David Alvey, Justin Alley, Keelie Wray, Emily Losness, Quill 

Onstead, Kay Ellison, Jessica Cole, Carley Postma  
2. Against DQSH 

a. Gary Wilson, Margo Logan, Colleen Saylors, Mike Johnson, Phil Kronebusch, Dan 
Duringer, Sue Regan, Tiffany Heine, Dawn Seaver, Leon Goodman, Denny 
Anderson, Randy Ross 

3. Anti-Censorship 
a. Len 

4. Equality and Diversity 
a. Wendi M., Jude Jacobs,   

5. Library Being a Safe Place 
a.   Sage, Gogo, Den Mask Wichar (spelling)  

Reports: 7:14 PM 
Branch Report:  Vancouver Mall Community Library: Brandon Cruz 

Page 8 of 92



   

  

Mr. Cruz shared updates about Vancouver Mall Library, including a new desk, improved 
signage, and new staff members. Mr. Cruz discussed bringing back programs since before 
2020. They are having a big turnout for programs, and provided numbers to show the 
differences over the past few years. They are partnering with the mall for story time and with the 
shop next door to them to show art in the library.   
 
December Financial Statements: Ms. Shelley 
Ms. Shelley discussed December  2022 financial statements.  
 

Consent Agenda 7:38 PM 
Chair Morgan, asked to pull the January 17, 2023 meeting minutes from the consent agenda for 
discussion to amend. 
Motion: Approve the minutes as amended. 
1st: Ms. Hodges 
2nd: Ms. Love-Henslee 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
FVRL Expenditure Approval: Reviewed by Vikram Kotwani 
Mr. Kotwani attested that he reviewed the January expenditures and found them in order.  
 
Motion: Chair Morgan asked to approve the consent agenda.  
1st: Ms. Hodges 
2nd: Ms. Love-Henslee 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
Business  

Policy Committee:  
Collection Review Procedure: Jan Johnston 7:56 PM 
Lynne Caldwell and Jan Johnston presented on the Collection Review process. 

Additional Rules of Conduct: 8:37 PM 
Ms. Shelley requested the Policy board rescinds this policy as it only applied to COVID-19 
emergency orders.  

Motion: Chair Morgan, asked for a motion to rescind additional rules of conduct from the 
policy regarding COVID-19.  
1st: Ms. Love-Henslee 
2nd: Ms. Dugan 
Motion carried unanimously.  

Facilities Committee: 
Woodland Project Update: 8:40 PM 
Groundbreaking day is scheduled for June 17, 2023 
Ms. Shelley shared the staff report on the Woodland project. Mr. Kotwani asked if the 
foundation could see if there are any additional grants available for this project.    

Finance Committee:  
Vancouver Mall Lease Agreement:  
Ms. Shelley shared the staff report on a 5-year extension of the lease.   
Resolution 2023-07:  Vancouver Mall Lease Agreement   8:43 PM 
Motion by Chair Morgan, to approve Resolution 23-07.   
1st: Ms. Love-Henslee 
2nd: Ms. Dugan 

Page 9 of 92



   

  

Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Vancouver Library Carpet Project  
Resolution 2023-08: Rubenstein Flooring Contract Closeout 8:47 PM 
Ms. Shelley asked the board to approve the closeout of this contract.  
Motion by Chair Morgan, to approve Resolution 23-08.  
1st: Ms. Dugan 
2nd: Ms. Love-Henslee 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 

Foundation MOU Committee  8:49 PM 
The Board Committee has not met and does not have a date set for the first meeting. It was 
stated that the next meeting will occur before the next board meeting.  

  
Board Comments 8:52 PM 

Ms. Love-Henslee: Thank you to Vancouver Library for hosting.  

Ms. Hodges: Addressed a letter shared with the Board.  

Mr. Kotwani: Thank you FVRL staff for doing a good job. Thank you for the presentation on the 
review process.  

Ms. Coffey: Has a question about responding to letters.  

Ms. Duncan-Cole: Expressed appreciation for all the communications tonight.  

Setting of next regular meeting: Saturday, March 18, 2023 4 PM (Three Creeks Community 
Library/Zoom)  

Adjournment 8:58 PM 

 

Approved: 
 
____________________________________ ________________________ 
Kristy Morgan, Chair Date 
 
 
________________________________        ________________________ 
Megan Dugan, Vice Chair                                                     Date 
   

Page 10 of 92



Page 11 of 92



Page 12 of 92



Page 13 of 92



Page 14 of 92



Page 15 of 92



Page 16 of 92



Page 17 of 92



Page 18 of 92



Page 19 of 92



Page 20 of 92



Page 21 of 92



Page 22 of 92



Page 23 of 92



Page 24 of 92



Page 25 of 92



Page 26 of 92



Page 27 of 92



Page 28 of 92



Page 29 of 92



Page 30 of 92



Page 31 of 92



Page 32 of 92



Page 33 of 92



Page 34 of 92



Page 35 of 92



Page 36 of 92



Page 37 of 92



Page 38 of 92



Page 39 of 92



Page 40 of 92



Page 41 of 92



Page 42 of 92



Page 43 of 92



Page 44 of 92



Page 45 of 92



Page 46 of 92



Page 47 of 92



Page 48 of 92



Page 49 of 92



Page 50 of 92



Page 51 of 92



Page 52 of 92



Page 53 of 92



Page 54 of 92



Page 55 of 92



Page 56 of 92



Page 57 of 92



Page 58 of 92



Page 59 of 92



Page 60 of 92



Page 61 of 92



Page 62 of 92



Page 63 of 92



Page 64 of 92



Page 65 of 92



Page 66 of 92



2023  
Budget and Work Plan

Page 67 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         1

District Overview
Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (FVRL) serves residents of southwest Washington in rural, 
suburban, and urban settings in Klickitat and Skamania Counties, all of Clark County except for the City 
of Camas, and the City of Woodland and the Yale Valley Library District in Cowlitz County. FVRL supports 
13 staffed locations, two partially staffed/self-serve libraries, and two bookmobiles, while also providing 
books-by-mail services to those living far from established library locations. 

FVRL has 624,040 physical items that can be borrowed without fear of overdue fines. Our libraries 
also host a robust collection of over 144,658 eBook and eAudio items as well as vast digital resources 
including eMagazines, streaming music and video platforms, and educational databases available 24/7 
to anyone who has a library account. FVRL offers a wide variety of programs for the public with a focus 
on early literacy, lifelong learning, and the opportunity to engage with your community through its best 
assets—our citizens, businesses, and partner organizations.

Page 68 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         2

GOVERNANCE

FVRL began in 1950 as Washington’s first intercounty rural library 
district. It’s now the fifth-largest library district in Washington. FVRL is an 
independent taxing district and is governed by a seven-member board 
of trustees in accordance with RCW 27.12. Three board members are 
appointed by the Clark County Council, two by the Vancouver City Council, 
and one each by the Klickitat and Skamania County Commissions. Three 
of the counties in our service area (Clark, Skamania, and Klickitat) confirm 
the appointees. The board hires the executive director, adopts the library 
district’s annual operating budget, sets an annual property tax levy, and 
approves the district’s long-range strategic plan. Trustees serve voluntarily 
and agree to uphold and embody FVRL’s Board Bylaws and Trustee Ethics 
and Responsibilities Policies.

LEADERSHIP

Responsible for the overall strategic direction and leadership of the district, 
the executive director ensures that FVRL operates within its approved 
budget while providing relevant programs, services, and materials that 
meet the needs of the diverse communities FVRL serves. The executive 
director’s leadership team includes the deputy director of Operations and 
Strategic Initiatives as well as directors for Collections and Technology 
Services, Communications and Marketing, Facilities, Human Resources, 
and Outreach and Community Partnerships. The leadership team 
partners closely with the 12 community librarians who serve as the branch 
managers of FVRL’s libraries, the district’s finance manager, and the 
executive director of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library Foundation,  
Rick Smithrud.

Clark County
Kristy Morgan
Penny Love-Henslee
Marie Coffey

Clark

City of
Vancouver

Skamania

Cowlitz

Klickitat

7 TOTAL BOARD MEMBERS
Each serving 7 year terms
3 representing Clark County - excluding incorporated City of Vancouver
2 representing City of Vancouver
1 representing Skamania County
1 representing Klickitat County

Clark

City of
Vancouver

Skamania

Cowlitz

Klickitat

SEVEN TOTAL FVRLibraries BOARD MEMBERS
Each serving 7 year terms

City of 
Vancouver
Megan Dugan
Vikram Kotwani

Skamania County
Mary Ann Duncan-Cole
Klickitat County
Olga Hodges

EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR

Amelia Shelley

DEPUTY DIRECTOR 
Mary Abler

Library Operations and  
Strategic Initiatives

DIVISION 
DIRECTORS

Lynne Caldwell
Collection and  

Technology Services 
Director

Dave Josephson
Facilities and Fleet 

Director

Justin Keeler
Outreach and 
Community 

Partnerships Director

Tak Kendrick
Communications and 

Marketing Director

Lee Strehlow
Human Resources 

Director

FINANCE

Attar Bhangal 
Finance Manager

Page 69 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         3

Executive Summary
FVRL’s objective for our 2023 budget is to support our vision that everyone in our communities is valued 
and empowered to succeed, by supporting our strategic goals and priorities, along with providing the 
traditional services our users depend upon to serve their needs. Our staff has developed a proposed 
budget rooted in our mission to strengthen our communities through knowledge, experience, and 
creativity and through our shared values of inclusion, collaboration, and access. We continue to work 
through our 2021-2024 Strategic Plan, which focuses on our four strategic priorities.

FVRL’s 2023 proposed budget is based on all of our community library buildings being fully open to 
the public for a minimum of six days a week, along with a comprehensive offering of library programs, 
materials, and services. Our budget includes a return to full library staffing and the implementation 
of the results of a salary review, to ensure our compensation remains competitive to attract top talent. 
The budget also supports an increase for our digital collections, and funding to continue some of the 
expanded library services started during the pandemic, including virtual programming, remote services, 
and ongoing health and safety procedures. 

FVRL will continue to ensure good stewardship of library resources while optimizing existing and new 
sources for funding. We are focused on building equity in our organization so our staff have the support 
and resources they need to embody the principles of collaboration and inclusion in their work. The 
proposed budget for 2023 is balanced at just under $34 million, including revenues, expenditures, cash 
balance requirements, and reserves. 

FVRL remains committed to providing vibrant, vital library services to all of our communities and users. 
That includes providing robust access to books and materials online, at curbside, and in our buildings. 
We look forward to a year of new possibilities with all the FVRL programs and services you have come to 
know, love, and trust.

Amelia Shelley       Kristy Morgan 
Executive Director      Chair, Board of Trustees

2022 saw the safe return of programs, activities, and smiling faces throughout the district.

Page 70 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         4

2023 Revenue
BUDGET OBJECTIVES

As always, the main objective for our budget 
is to provide robust library services and 
exceptional customer service for the citizens 
of southwest Washington. These objectives 
include making access to library resources a 
priority through adequate staffing and hours 
of service, pursuing capital projects that 
improve facilities, and evaluating opportunities 
for small-scale growth into new areas. We 
are also focused on the initiatives of our 
current strategic plan, ensuring equity in 
our practices, building effective community 
partnerships, creating meaningful connections 
with our communities, and improving our 
organizational culture through a focused effort 
in hiring, training, and retention practices. 

REVENUE

FVRL relies on property tax for the majority of 
its operating revenue. Revenue from property 
tax is allowed to grow by up to 1% annually 
under Washington state law. Since 2005, 
FVRL’s revenue has grown by an average 
of three percent annually, thanks to the 
additional support that comes through tax 
revenues generated by new construction and 
state-assessed utilities. 

Our 2023 budget assumes full use of the 1% 
property tax increase available to FVRL and 
will account for 81% of FVRL’s total budget 
this year. Other revenue sources include 
other taxes, grants, and contracts, charges 
for services, investment interest, and capital 
reserves and reimbursements, which add 
$5.4 million for a total estimated 2023  
budget of $33,902,500, an increase of  
7.5% over 2022. 

2022 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$31,535,500 

2023 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$33,902,500 
2022 OPERATIONAL

EXPENDITURES
$27,298,395

2023 OPERATIONAL
EXPENDITURES

$27,997,500

2022
REVENUE TOTAL

$31,535,500

ALL 2023
REVENUE SOURCES

$33,895,400 

2022 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$27,985,500

2023 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$28,602,500 

Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Reserve Funds
Reimbursements

Personnel
Technology & Supplies
Library Materials

Operations
Capital Projects
Reserved Project

2022 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$31,535,500 

2023 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$33,902,500 
2022 OPERATIONAL

EXPENDITURES
$27,298,395

2023 OPERATIONAL
EXPENDITURES

$27,997,500

2022
REVENUE TOTAL

$31,535,500

ALL 2023
REVENUE SOURCES

$33,895,400 

2022 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$27,985,500

2023 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$28,602,500 

Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Reserve Funds
Reimbursements

Personnel
Technology & Supplies
Library Materials

Operations
Capital Projects
Reserved Project

2022 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$31,535,500 

2023 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$33,902,500 
2022 OPERATIONAL

EXPENDITURES
$27,298,395

2023 OPERATIONAL
EXPENDITURES

$27,997,500

2022
REVENUE TOTAL

$31,535,500

ALL 2023
REVENUE SOURCES

$33,895,400 

2022 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$27,985,500

2023 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$28,602,500 

Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Reserve Funds
Reimbursements

Personnel
Technology & Supplies
Library Materials

Operations
Capital Projects
Reserved Project

Page 71 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         5

LIBRARY LEVY RATE

Total taxable assessed value for FVRL’s service 
area increased 15% over 2022. However, 
because of the 1% cap, any growth in taxable 
assessed value causes FVRL’s levy rate to 
drop. Our levy rate was $.50 per $1,000 of 
property value in 2010, and has declined to 
$.2794730502 in 2023. Even though the rate 
has gone down, FVRL’s revenue continues to 
increase due to rising property values. The 
2023 levy rate amounts to approximately 
$27.6 million in property tax revenue. 

FVRL’s general fund represents all of the cash 
the District has on hand. The fund needs to 
be adequate to carry FVRL between receipt 
of tax revenues in April and October, and by 
policy, needs to retain at least 60 to 90 days 
of operational support as a rainy day fund. 
FVRL also holds assigned funds in reserve 
for capital projects and other expenses and 
liabilities. In 2022, the assigned portion of the 
general fund was just over $12 million, set 
aside mostly for capital projects. 

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES 

FVRL budgets adequate funding to cover 
anticipated expenses for the coming year. 
These can include routine monthly costs as 
well as one-time expenses. Total personnel 
costs represent 55% of the total budget of 
$33,902,500, which includes capital projects, 
or 65% of the Operational Budget  
of $27,977,500.

2022 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$31,535,500 

2023 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$33,902,500 
2022 OPERATIONAL

EXPENDITURES
$27,298,395

2023 OPERATIONAL
EXPENDITURES

$27,997,500

2022
REVENUE TOTAL

$31,535,500

ALL 2023
REVENUE SOURCES

$33,895,400 

2022 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$27,985,500

2023 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$28,602,500 

Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Reserve Funds
Reimbursements

Personnel
Technology & Supplies
Library Materials

Operations
Capital Projects
Reserved Project

2022 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$31,535,500 

2023 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$33,902,500 
2022 OPERATIONAL

EXPENDITURES
$27,298,395

2023 OPERATIONAL
EXPENDITURES

$27,997,500

2022
REVENUE TOTAL

$31,535,500

ALL 2023
REVENUE SOURCES

$33,895,400 

2022 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$27,985,500

2023 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$28,602,500 

Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Reserve Funds
Reimbursements

Personnel
Technology & Supplies
Library Materials

Operations
Capital Projects
Reserved Project

2022 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$31,535,500 

2023 TOTAL
EXPENDITURES

$33,902,500 
2022 OPERATIONAL

EXPENDITURES
$27,298,395

2023 OPERATIONAL
EXPENDITURES

$27,997,500

2022
REVENUE TOTAL

$31,535,500

ALL 2023
REVENUE SOURCES

$33,895,400 

2022 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$27,985,500

2023 OPERATIONAL
REVENUE

$28,602,500 

Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Reserve Funds
Reimbursements

Personnel
Technology & Supplies
Library Materials

Operations
Capital Projects
Reserved Project

General Fund and Reserves

Page 72 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         6

PERSONNEL

The 2023 budget for wages is $12,750,000, a 6.25% increase from 2022. There are a number of 
factors that went into determining this increase. In 2022, we added extra capacity to wages to absorb the 
anticipated impact of the implementation of the 2021 salary review. An additional factor in wage growth 
has been the Washington minimum wage increase to $15.74 on January 1, 2023. Bargaining efforts with 
both of our unions led to new market-based wages for all employees, with public library assistants starting 
at $15.83 plus benefits, for those working over 24 hours a week. 

The 2023 budget currently includes an anniversary step increase of 2.5% for all WPEA employees 
per our Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA), if they are not in a performance improvement plan. 
AFSCME-represented employees will receive a 2.5% increase in wages on July 1, 2023 per the current 
CBA, as will our nonrepresented employees. We do this to keep the similar classifications of positions 
commensurate with each other. AFSCME and nonrepresented staff are also eligible for growth and 
development increases on anniversary milestones. 

The two largest areas of benefit costs to FVRL are health insurance and retirement. Medical and dental 
insurance coverage and long-term disability are all relatively flat in 2023, thanks to some extra capacity in 
the 2022 budget. Our employees participate in the Washington Public Employees Retirement System and 
FVRL’s share of the contribution in 2023 is 10.39% of eligible wages. 

FVRL also pays the employers’ share of the cost for Workman’s Compensation and Paid Family Medical 
Leave (WAPFML), both programs administered by the state. WAPFML rates increased to 8% of wages 
on January 1, 2023, a cost which both the employer and employee share in terms of contributions. Our 
Labor and Industries (LNI) Workman’s Compensation rates vary annually based on our claims history and 
position risk classes. 

EQUIPMENT, TECHNOLOGY, AND SUPPLIES

We will continue to focus on our cybersecurity efforts and will be adding dedicated Help Desk staff to the 
IT team, which should improve our response to support tickets, and allow staff to concentrate on larger 
District IT projects. We will also be updating our self-check software after reviewing the current market for 
available options. 

Supplies include fuel for vehicles, which spiked in 2022. Our Facilities team has been working on 
reducing the number of trips and increasing other efficiencies to save money and reduce our carbon 
footprint in this area. Additionally, this category includes software for public-facing services such as 
OverDrive, Kanopy, and Libby as well as internal functions such as accounting, web management, 
maintenance, and data analysis. We have also reduced our computer replacement cycle to keep our 
technology more up to date for staff and patrons. 

2023 Expenditures

Page 73 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         7

LIBRARY BOOKS AND MATERIALS

This category includes all of the print and other materials purchased for physical circulation in our 
libraries. Multiple copies of new and popular items are acquired and shared throughout our service area 
through a floating collection. It also includes eBooks and eAudio, as well as online databases for music, 
magazines, and movies. 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, OVERHEAD, AND MAINTENANCE

This portion of the budget reflects the main operational costs of the District. FVRL anticipates an 
increase in professional services in 2023 due to a number of factors, including custodial contracts, 
communications, repairs and maintenance, utilities, insurance, and consultant fees for the Operations 
Center and Woodland capital projects. The Woodland costs will be partially offset by reimbursements 
from the Foundation. 

LIBRARY CAPITAL PROJECTS

Capital projects make up 15% of our total 2023 budget. The new Woodland Community Library building 
will break ground in early summer of this year. The current project cost is estimated at just under $7 
million, with about 17% of the cost being attributed to the site, due to the need to mitigate the impact of 
poor soils. Also in 2023, FVRL will complete the remodel of 2018 Grand Boulevard. FVRL purchased the 
building in 2021 to serve as the new Operations Center. The current schedule for construction gets us 
into the building in mid-July. 

We are planning a number of other capital projects in our libraries next year throughout the District, 
including sealcoating and striping the parking lot in La Center, replacing the front doors at Three Creeks, 
Stevenson, and Vancouver Mall libraries, and remodeling the first floor of our downtown Vancouver 
Community Library to include a makerspace and additional comfortable seating. Smaller projects are 
happening at every location and range from adding sound-absorbing panels at Ridgefield, Cascade Park, 
and White Salmon Valley libraries to installing security cameras at Battle Ground to tree-trimming at 
Goldendale. We will continue to fundraise for the Washougal Community Library project, and study the 
opportunities for a branch library in Brush Prairie. 

Breaking ground in the summer of 2023, the new Woodland Community Library will be a welcoming and accessible destination for generations to come.

Page 74 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         8

2022 Approved 
REVENUE

311.10 $24,250,000 $25,300,000 $1,050,000 4.33%
311.10 $325,000 $315,000 -$10,000 -3.08%
311.10 $1,345,500 $1,315,000 -$30,500 -2.27%
311.10 $675,000 $690,000 $15,000 2.22%

26,595,500 $27,620,000 $1,024,500 3.85%

311.11 0 25,000 $25,000 0%
318.20 120,000 95,000 -$25,000 -20.83%

120,000 120,000 $0 0.00%

0 25,000 25,000 0%
332.00 5,000 15,000 $10,000 200.00%
335.05 225,000 150,000 -$75,000 -33.33%
338.72 61,000 0 -$61,000 -100.00%
338.72 162,500 180,000 $17,500 10.77%
338.72 500 500 $0 0.00%

454,000 370,500 -$108,500 -23.90%

341.60 20,000 20,000 $0 0.00%
347.21 6,000 6,000 $0 0.00%
347.90 25,000 25,000 $0 0.00%
347.50 5,000 0 -$5,000 -100.00%

56,000 51,000 -$5,000 -8.93%

361.11 120,000 200,000 $80,000 66.67%
362.00 2,500 1,000 -$1,500 -60.00%
367.10 15,000 15,000 $0 0.00%
369.90 2,500 2,500 $0 0.00%
369.90 150,000 50,000 -$100,000 -66.67%
369.40 250,000 2,500 -$247,500 -99.00%
369.90 200,000 150,000 -$50,000 -25.00%
395.00 20,000 20,000 $0 0.00%

 Miscellaneous 760,000 441,000 -$319,000 -41.97%

27,985,500 $28,602,500 592,000 2.12%

397.10 0 0 $0 0.00%
397.10 2,400,000 2,500,000 $100,000 4.17%

2,400,000 2,500,000 $100,000 4.17%

369.90 150,000 300,000 $150,000 100.00%
369.90 1,000,000 2,500,000 $1,500,000 150.00%

 Reimbursements 1,150,000 2,800,000 $1,650,000 143.48%

Grand Total Revenue 31,535,500 $33,902,500 $2,342,000 7.43%

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement Of Revenue - Budget - Fiscal Year 2023

APPROVED 12/19/2022

2023 Approved 
Budget

 Dollar 
Difference

Percent 
Change

Property Taxes - Clark 
Property Taxes - Cowlitz
Property Taxes - Klickitat

Property Taxes - Skamania

Other General Tax
Leasehold Excise Tax

State grants
Federal in-lieu of Taxes

State Forest Boards
INET City of Vancouver (PEG)

Yale Valley Library District
Contracts - Clark County Jail

Equipment Use Fees
Non-Resident Borrower Fee

Lost / Damaged Material Fee
Collection Agency Referral Fee

Investment Interest
Rental Income

Gifts/Contributions

Transfer in (restricted)
Transfer from Reserves

Library Friends Groups 
Fort Vancouver Regional Library Foundation  

Miscellaneous
Grants

Insurance
Other Miscellaneous - E-Rate

Sale of Assets

Transfer in (unrestricted)

Subtotal-Operating Revenues

 Intergovernmental, Grants & Contracts

 Charges for Services

 Property Taxes

 Other Taxes

Bars                                                                 Description

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
Statement of Revenue - Budget - Fiscal Year 2023

APPROVED 12/19/2022

Page 75 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         9

LIBRARY OPERATING BUDGET

00 01 12,000,000 12,750,000 750,000 6.25%
2,560,000 2,300,000 -260,000 -10.16%

300,000 240,000 -60,000 -20.00%
125,000 75,000 -50,000 -40.00%

1,540,000 1,324,725 -215,275 -13.98%
910,000 975,375 65,375 7.18%
100,000 100,000 0 0.00%

572.2X 20,000 27,785 7,785 38.92%
00 01 10,000 10,000 0 0.00%

17,565,000 17,802,885 237,885 1.35%

01
0

02 $392,525 $458,000 65,475 16.68%
01 02 $266,700 $250,000 -16,700 -6.26%

$433,000 $462,000 29,000 6.70%
$350,000 $300,000 -50,000 -14.29%

1,442,225 1,470,000 27,775 1.93%

03
02
0

03 $2,300,000 $1,903,500 -396,500 -17.24%

02
5

03 $1,600,000 $1,896,500 296,500 18.53%

3,900,000 3,800,000 -100,000 -2.56%

03 04 $1,725,000 $2,079,225 354,225 20.53%
03 04 $387,800 $410,000 22,200 5.72%
04 04 $108,000 $108,000 0 0.00%
04 04 $30,000 $30,000 0 0.00%
05 04 $567,925 $560,000 -7,925 -1.40%
05 04 $220,000 $250,000 30,000 13.64%
06 04 $458,855 $450,000 -8,855 -1.93%
06 04 $704,250 $870,000 165,750 23.54%
07 04 $165,700 $163,750 -1,950 -1.18%
07 04 $3,640 $3,640 0 0.00%

4,371,170 4,924,615 553,445 12.66%

27,278,395 27,997,500 719,105 2.64%

08 05 $500,000 $300,000 -200,000 -40.00%
572.62 Yale $40,000 $40,000 0 0.00%

08 05 $3,392,105 $5,500,000 2,107,895 62.14%
09 05 $325,000 $65,000 -260,000 -80.00%

4,257,105 5,905,000 1,647,895 38.71%

31,535,500$ 33,902,500$ 2,367,000$      7.51%

Technology 
Library Software and Professional 
Equipment Subtotal:

Resources: Books, Materials & e-resources

572.38
572.33

572.49

572.43
572.44 Advertising

Library Books & Materials
Electronic Resources

Resources Subtotal:
Operations: Services, Overhead and Maintenance

572.41 Professional Services

572.34
572.39

Repairs & Maintenance

572.42 Communications
Training / Travel

572.48

572.45 Rentals / Leases
572.46 Insurance
572.47 Utilities

Grand Total All Expenditures:

Misc / Dues / Printing / Other
Intergovernmental Services
Operations Subtotal:

Subtotal-Operating Expenditures
Capital Projects: Library Improvements

572.62 Buildings / Non-Owned

594.62 Buildings / Owned
594.64 Machinery & Equipment

Capital Projects Subtotal:

572.50

Bars Description

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement of Expenditure - Budget - Fiscal Year 2023

2022
Approved 

Budget

2023
Approved 

Budget 

Dollar 
Difference

Percentage 
Increase or 
Decrease

APPROVED 12/19/2022

Personnel: Wages & Benefits
572.00 Wages 
572.24 Benefit - Medical
572.24 Benefit - Dental
572.24 Benefit - Life, AD&D, LTD
572.22 Benefit - PERS
572.21 Benefit - FICA
572.25

572.30
572.35

Benefit - L & I 
Benefit - PFMLA

572.28 Unemployment Expense
Personnel Subtotal:

Equipment: Technology & Supplies
Supplies
Small Equipmt (FFE) 

LIBRARY OPERATING BUDGET

00 01 12,000,000 12,750,000 750,000 6.25%
2,560,000 2,300,000 -260,000 -10.16%

300,000 240,000 -60,000 -20.00%
125,000 75,000 -50,000 -40.00%

1,540,000 1,324,725 -215,275 -13.98%
910,000 975,375 65,375 7.18%
100,000 100,000 0 0.00%

572.2X 20,000 27,785 7,785 38.92%
00 01 10,000 10,000 0 0.00%

17,565,000 17,802,885 237,885 1.35%

01
0

02 $392,525 $458,000 65,475 16.68%
01 02 $266,700 $250,000 -16,700 -6.26%

$433,000 $462,000 29,000 6.70%
$350,000 $300,000 -50,000 -14.29%

1,442,225 1,470,000 27,775 1.93%

03
02
0

03 $2,300,000 $1,903,500 -396,500 -17.24%

02
5

03 $1,600,000 $1,896,500 296,500 18.53%

3,900,000 3,800,000 -100,000 -2.56%

03 04 $1,725,000 $2,079,225 354,225 20.53%
03 04 $387,800 $410,000 22,200 5.72%
04 04 $108,000 $108,000 0 0.00%
04 04 $30,000 $30,000 0 0.00%
05 04 $567,925 $560,000 -7,925 -1.40%
05 04 $220,000 $250,000 30,000 13.64%
06 04 $458,855 $450,000 -8,855 -1.93%
06 04 $704,250 $870,000 165,750 23.54%
07 04 $165,700 $163,750 -1,950 -1.18%
07 04 $3,640 $3,640 0 0.00%

4,371,170 4,924,615 553,445 12.66%

27,278,395 27,997,500 719,105 2.64%

08 05 $500,000 $300,000 -200,000 -40.00%
572.62 Yale $40,000 $40,000 0 0.00%

08 05 $3,392,105 $5,500,000 2,107,895 62.14%
09 05 $325,000 $65,000 -260,000 -80.00%

4,257,105 5,905,000 1,647,895 38.71%

31,535,500$ 33,902,500$ 2,367,000$      7.51%

Technology 
Library Software and Professional 
Equipment Subtotal:

Resources: Books, Materials & e-resources

572.38
572.33

572.49

572.43
572.44 Advertising

Library Books & Materials
Electronic Resources

Resources Subtotal:
Operations: Services, Overhead and Maintenance

572.41 Professional Services

572.34
572.39

Repairs & Maintenance

572.42 Communications
Training / Travel

572.48

572.45 Rentals / Leases
572.46 Insurance
572.47 Utilities

Grand Total All Expenditures:

Misc / Dues / Printing / Other
Intergovernmental Services
Operations Subtotal:

Subtotal-Operating Expenditures
Capital Projects: Library Improvements

572.62 Buildings / Non-Owned

594.62 Buildings / Owned
594.64 Machinery & Equipment

Capital Projects Subtotal:

572.50

Bars Description

Fort Vancouver Regional Library District
Statement of Expenditure - Budget - Fiscal Year 2023

2022
Approved 

Budget

2023
Approved 

Budget 

Dollar 
Difference

Percentage 
Increase or 
Decrease

APPROVED 12/19/2022

Personnel: Wages & Benefits
572.00 Wages 
572.24 Benefit - Medical
572.24 Benefit - Dental
572.24 Benefit - Life, AD&D, LTD
572.22 Benefit - PERS
572.21 Benefit - FICA
572.25

572.30
572.35

Benefit - L & I 
Benefit - PFMLA

572.28 Unemployment Expense
Personnel Subtotal:

Equipment: Technology & Supplies
Supplies
Small Equipmt (FFE) 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
Statement of Expenditure - Budget - Fiscal Year 2023

APPROVED 12/19/2022

Page 76 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         10

2021-2024 Strategic Plan Progress 
FVRL is entering the third year of work on our strategic plan, with an eye toward completing its current 
initiatives and determining next steps for the District’s future. Key to this will be understanding and 
evaluating our communities’ needs, which have been impacted by the pandemic. We are very proud of 
what we have accomplished, despite the challenges in each area of focus, and wish to share an overview 
of those successes. 

EQUITY: We prioritize equity in all aspects of our work. 

	Provided sets of diversity materials to each library to create displays for specific annual 
celebrations including Black History, Asian American and Pacific Islander Heritage 
LGBTQ Pride, Disability Pride, Hispanic Heritage, and Native American Heritage months. 

	In conjunction with these diversity displays, FVRL staff assembled book lists of titles for 
various reading levels, genres, and formats that are posted on our website year-round. 

	Developed a new curriculum for storytimes, with a special emphasis on inclusive 
programming and Anti-Bias Education principles in order to help ensure more of our 
families are able to see themselves reflected in our early literacy programming.

CONNECTIONS: We offer inclusive and welcoming buildings, experiences, and resources.

	Summer @ Your Library partnered with 20 different agencies at 29 individual locations, 
reaching over 8,000 children.  

	Launched our new monthly News & Events booklets to promote area-specific and district-
wide program information and resources.

	Added Anytime Storytimes in the spring of 2022. To date, these virtual storytimes have 
been viewed over 2,400 times. 

	In 2022, FVRLibraries hosted 73 in-person programs, 11 performances, 119 virtual 
programs, and 16 on-demand programs for children and families.  

	Updated our promotional photos to reflect our communities instead of using stock footage 
or years-old imagery.

Equity 
We prioritize equity  
in all aspects of our 

work.

Partnerships 
We build relationships with 

and between organizations in 
our communities.

Connections 
We offer inclusive and  
welcoming buildings, 

experiences, and resources.

Organizational Culture  
We value and respect  

each other’s skills, creativity, 
and resourcefulness.  

Page 77 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         11

PARTNERSHIPS: We build relationships with and between organizations in our communities.

	In addition to our longstanding partnerships, we have been steadily increasing our 
efforts to develop more meaningful partnerships with agencies and groups that support 
non-dominant communities, including the Southwest Washington chapter of Parents 
and Friends of Lesbians and Gays (PFLAG), the Columbia River Institute for Indigenous 
Development, Washington Gorge Action Programs (WAGAP), Early Childhood Education 
Assistance Programs (ECEAP), and Head Start programs around the district.

	Local artist Sarah Lynne Hunter has been commissioned to paint a six-panel, movable 
mural for the long wall at Cascade Park Community Library. Her proposal, “Growing a 
Reader,” was selected from 15 responses to a competitive Call for Artists. The mural 
series is planned to be unveiled in the summer of 2023.

	In December 2022, we began a partnership with Columbia River Mental Health Services 
to help connect the most vulnerable in our community to specific social services through 
the CRMHS’ Community Navigators program. Trained Navigators provide hands-on 
assistance to help community members access crucial services, programs, and resources 
for needs like childcare, food, housing, and healthcare.

ORGANIZATIONAL CULTURE:  
We value and respect each other’s skills, creativity, and resourcefulness. 

  

	Implemented pay increases to get nearly all positions to a minimum of 100%  
of the market.

	Developed and conducted mandatory Equity Foundational Training for all staff,  
with a quarterly offering for new employees. 

	Provided training for employees on the use of our new Equity Lens and Toolkit.

	Replaced our automated handling machines at three locations: Cascade Park,  
Three Creeks, and Vancouver. 

	Added a new communications project management system for internal use so staff can 
submit promotional requests, signage, online calendar edits, and suggestions for our 
website in one place. 

A new mural from local artist Sarah Lynne Hunter will be unveiled at Cascade Park Community Library in the summer of 2023.

Page 78 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries  2023 Budget         12

624,040
Physical Items

686 
Volunteers

19,159 
  Contributed Hours

2,172
ILL Loans

3,512
ILL Borrows

72,749 
Kanopy Plays

47,680 
Hoopla Circulations

672,556 
eBook Checkouts

658,925 
eAudio Checkouts

993,378
Website Visits

207
State Park 

Passes

59,000+
Value Line

3x 2021 usage

375,482
PressReader

2.5x 2021 usage

157,298
World Book

4.5x 2021 usage

101,664
Computer Sessions

8,161
Program Participants

1,692,669 
Items Checked Out

CHECKOUTS

DIGITAL

TOP DATABASE RESOURCES USAGE

ACCOUNTS

2022

$

234,044
Library

Card Holders

22,191
New Accounts

64,422
Student Accounts

708
Educator Accounts

8,838
Book

by Mail

Year in Numbers
624,040

Physical Items

686 
Volunteers

19,159 
  Contributed Hours

2,172
ILL Loans

3,512
ILL Borrows

72,749 
Kanopy Plays

47,680 
Hoopla Circulations

672,556 
eBook Checkouts

658,925 
eAudio Checkouts

993,378
Website Visits

207
State Park 

Passes

59,000+
Value Line

3x 2021 usage

375,482
PressReader

2.5x 2021 usage

157,298
World Book

4.5x 2021 usage

101,664
Computer Sessions

8,161
Program Participants

1,692,669 
Items Checked Out

CHECKOUTS

DIGITAL

TOP DATABASE RESOURCES USAGE

ACCOUNTS

2022

$

234,044
Library

Card Holders

22,191
New Accounts

64,422
Student Accounts

708
Educator Accounts

8,838
Book

by Mail

Year in Numbers

Page 79 of 92



Fort Vancouver Regional Library District

Staff Report 2023-07

Lost/Damaged Items Recovery and Billing Recommendations

TO: Finance Committee

FROM: Lynne Caldwell, Collections and Technology Director

DATE: 03/18/2023

SUBJECT: Recommendations for billing practices, fine thresholds and related fees

SUMMARY: FVRL has used a service in the past called Unique Library Services for their “Gentle Nudge

Recovery” program to assist with recovering lost items and resolving delinquent accounts. Staff are

requesting consideration for eliminating the service fee to patrons and increasing the threshold at which

accounts are sent to Unique to reduce expense.

PAST PRACTICES AND RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. Continue referring past due accounts to Unique Library Services, and consider the ~$10 referral

fee as a cost of doing business. The company provides additional letters and phone calls to

patrons regarding their overdue items, and they provide updated address information.

a. We have not referred any accounts to Unique since March 2020 due to the uncertainty

of the pandemic. We recommend that we reestablish our relationship with Unique at

this time.

i. Our data shows that pre-pandemic accounts owing $40 or more that were NOT

sent to Unique had a 75% return rate.

ii. Those who were sent to Unique 2017-2019 showed a 91% return rate.

b. The service costs ~$10/account. Currently this is passed on to the library patron, but we

recommend that the library considers this as a “cost of doing business” going forward.

i. Our current practice is to pass on the $10 and not allow patrons to use their card

until that $10 is paid, even if that is all that they owe

ii. Under other circumstances patrons who owe under $25 are allowed to continue

using their card. For this reason the continued block of users who only owe the

Unique fee appears punitive. There are currently 1,907 users who only owe the

$10 referral fee.

iii. If we had staff making phone calls and following up on addresses it would cost

more than $10 per account based on the time it would take and the wages we

pay. It would also take them away from other patron services.

c. Currently we refer accounts to Unique when the account owes $40 or more and the

items are 8 weeks overdue. We now recommend that we refer accounts owing $60 or

more.

i. Our goal is that if someone is referred for escalated recovery that they have

enough overdue items to make it seem appropriate. For example, the average

Page 80 of 92

https://uniquelibrary.com/library-asset-recovery/
https://uniquelibrary.com/library-asset-recovery/


hardback book is ~$30. The average kids book is ~ $15-20. It seems excessive to

me to send someone for escalated recovery if they only have 1.5-2 books

overdue.

ii. At $60 there is a cutoff point where ~75% of the accounts owing money are

below that $60 spot. So MOST accounts owing money would not go to Unique.

d. Remove the $10 referral fee from existing accounts.

i. We would be removing $59,029 in fees that are often never paid

ii. As stated above, this would immediately allow 1,907 accounts to be in good

standing.

iii. The remaining ~4,000 accounts in this status would return to good standing

once the overdue materials are returned.

ACTION REQUESTED: Staff recommends Board approval of the following changes -

1. Return to using Unique Library Service for recovery of library materials and clearing of

delinquent accounts

2. Increasing the threshold for accounts being sent to Unique to $60

3. Eliminating the $10 Unique service fee

4. Remove the $10 fee from existing accounts, which totals $59,029

Page 81 of 92



 

 

FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2023-09 

Abolishing the Material Recovery Fee 
 

The regular meeting of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District (FVRL) Board of Trustees was 

held January 17, 2023 at Cascade Park Community Library, attended by a quorum of the Board for 

the conduct of such business; and, after due consideration and deliberation, the following 

resolution was duly passed by a majority vote of all Trustees then attending. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees make library cards available to anyone living or owning property in the 

unincorporated areas of FVRL’s three county service area of Clark, Skamania and Klickitat counties; 

excluding those living within the city limits of Camas, and  

 

WHEREAS, FVRL’s Library Privileges Policy states that individuals will be charged for lost and damaged 
materials, and that Borrowers are responsible for everything checked out on their cards, even if those 
items are lost or stolen; and 

WHEREAS, FVRL has historically used a referral service to assist the District with retrieving lost items 

when items become long overdue, and passed along the cost of that service to the patron through a 

Material Recovery Fee of $10; and 

 

WHEREAS, FVRL makes every effort to ensure its policies are fair and equitable for all users and 

understands that excessive fees on accounts can be an impediment to use that disproportionately 

impacts low income users; and, 

 

WHEREAS, individuals owing FVRL fees for lost or damaged items are blocked from using their library 

accounts until the items are returned or the fees are paid.  

 

Now therefore, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 

abolishes the $10 Material Recovery Fee on all current accounts, and for any accounts referred to a 

recovery service in the future.  

 

Adopted this 18th day of March, 2023.  

 
___________________________________________________ 

Kristy Morgan, Chair 

___________________________________________________ 

Megan Dugan, Vice Chair 

Page 82 of 92



FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY 
RESOLUTION: 2023-10 

AUTHORITY TO SURPLUS EQUIPMENT 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE FORT VANCOUVER REGIONAL LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES DECLARING FORT VANCOUVER LIBRARY DISTRICT 

EQUIPMENT AS SURPLUS AND AUTHORIZING ITEMS TO BE DISCARDED 

 

The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Fort Vancouver Regional Library was held 

virtually on Saturday, March 18, 2023 at the Three Creeks Community Library and attended by a 

quorum of the Board of Trustees for the conduct of such business; and, after due consideration and 

deliberation, the following resolution was duly passed by a majority vote of all Trustees attending. 

 

WHEREAS, the FVRL Board of Trustees has authorized the purchase of item(s) through budget 

approval; and 

 

WHEREAS, FVRL effectively utilizes its equipment to maximize service, which may result in 

upgrading equipment; and  

 

WHEREAS, FVRL has determined that these computers and peripherals on the attached list are 

outdated and unreliable and therefore should be declared surplus; 

 

WHEREAS, in order to dispose of the no longer used items, the FVRL Board of Trustees must 

declare the item as surplus;  

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: that Fort Vancouver Regional Library District 

Resolution 2023-10, approving the surplus of the equipment listed be adopted. 

 

 

 

Approved:   
 Chair, Kristy Morgan 

 

Attested:   

 Vice Chair, Megan Dugan 

 

Date:   

Page 83 of 92



Found FVRL # Serial Model Notes
20636 D3VG136662 Epson TM-T88 III receipt printer
20347 CNBGH26717 HP LaserJet 2300dn
VLCFA0726 69RXGQ1 Dell Optiplex 990
24261 D61JKS1 Dell Optiplex 990
25254 5RNLK02 Dell Optiplex 3010
VLCFA0723 None Dell U2410f Monitor
24356 CN-0VXV49-72872-223-ANCL Dell E2311Hf Monitor
25439 CN-0KW14V-74261-43K-2CKB Dell P2214Hb Monitor
28165 6GXZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28125 6SRVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28171 6SN0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28117 6GTZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28170 6SRYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28160 6T31RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28162 6T2XQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28108 6H0WQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28031 6GTXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28137 6GVZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28138 6H10RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
44602 8XWMCH2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28115 6GT0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28157 6H0ZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28109 6GZWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28129 6GXXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28113 6H00RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28041 6SQXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28154 6SR1RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28021 6GTYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28183 8XWKCH2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28178 6T1YQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28029 6H01RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
No tag 8XWNCH2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28064 6SZYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28033 6H0YQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28048 6GWZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28055 6SWVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28018 6SQZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28022 6GVXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28038 6SWYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28083 6T40RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28067 6SXXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28047 6GZ0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28110 6GVYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28087 6SPWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28020 6SSXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28095 6GYVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28059 6SXVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28061 6SVZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28037 6SZVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28057 6SYVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28054 6SWWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28035 6GTWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28060 6SXZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28019 6GYZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28086 6STVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28106 6GVVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28075 6SXWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28037 6SZVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28045 6GT1RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28140 6SRWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28056 6SX0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28088 6SN1RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28094 6SS0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28058 6SVWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28068 6SZWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28066 6SYZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28081 6SP0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28024 6SMVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28065 6SVXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28091 6SP1RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28077 6SW0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28027 6GXWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO

Page 84 of 92



Found FVRL # Serial Model Notes
28185 6XWLCH2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28121 6GW0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28044 6GTVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28090 6GYYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28161 6T3YQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28053 6SY0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28085 6SZ0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28043 6SS1RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28023 6SMWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28107 6GXYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28092 6STZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
38039 6SSWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28028 6SPZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28134 6SPYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28084 6SWXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28149 6T3ZQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28082 6SVVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
13682 30 03 43 0761 Metrologic MS6720 Barcode Scanner
21159 30 06 07 0660 Metrologic MS6720 Barcode Scanner
21800 30 06 40 0325 Metrologic MS6720 Barcode Scanner
21348 30 05 29 0175 Metrologic MS6720 Barcode Scanner
26306 5QPQK02 Dell Optiplex 3010
26304 5QPPK02 Dell Optiplex 3010
25116 83QR8Z1 Dell Optiplex 3010
No Tag 5QQPK02 Dell Optiplex 3010
26503 60X5R52 Dell Optiplex 3020
VLCFA0958 CN-07XVV9-74261-58B-04VU Dell S2240Tb Touchscreen Monitor
VLCFA0960 CN-07XVV9-74261-58B-04YU Dell S2240Tb Touchscreen Monitor
No Tag CN-OVYTW5-72872-420-AMRL Dell E2314Hf Monitor
VLCFA0669 3RB7GQ1 Dell Optiplex 990
26262 2G97P22 Dell Optiplex 7010
26277 2GJ7P22 Dell Optiplex 7010
26278 2GH7P22 Dell Optiplex 7010
26279 2GM8P22 Dell Optiplex 7010
26687 2YZLT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26643 2Z5KT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26696 2YYFT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26724 2Z8FT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26691 2YYKT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26676 2YXHT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26665 2YZFT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26666 2Z2JT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26688 2Z4GT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26692 2Z9KT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26690 2Z6JT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26685 2Z6FT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
26668 2Z1JT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
No Tag DDNT9P1 Dell Optiplex 380
28175 6T1WQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28118 6T0XQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28119 6T10RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
26647 2YWLT52 Dell Optiplex 9020
24355 CN-0VXV49-72872-223-DA6L Dell E2311Hf Monitor
VLCFA0742 None Dell U2410f Monitor
28093 6SPXQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
24704 JZ86WX1 Dell PowerEdge R720
25001 8HHDBZ1 Dell PowerEdge R720
25007 FK01T52 Dell PowerEdge R530
24705 H3ZJSW1 Dell PowerEdge T620
VLCFA0415 6KGMPQ1 Dell PowerEdge R510
28132 6STYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28063 6XSYQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
28042 6GXVQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
21414 D6GG310203 Epson TM-T88 III receipt printer
21392 D6GG311726 Epson TM-T88 III receipt printer
22695 AQ22H9Q413177D Samsung 2253BW color monitor Was part of Humanware device, the rest of which is discard
21917 93085-2049401 Dymo LabelWriter Twin Turbo
25005 FKBBT52 Dell PowerEdge R430
None PHBLKBT3R9 HP LaserJet Pro M4261fdw fax machine
21418 D6GG310229 Epson TM-T88 III receipt printer
24328 CN-0VXV49-72872-223-CL9L Dell E2311Hf Monitor
VLCFA0722 None Dell U2410f Monitor

Page 85 of 92



Found FVRL # Serial Model Notes
23245 CZ-0R630J-73608-96P-0WAS Dell 1909 Monitor
26917 CN-0RNMH6-74445-0C7-BCVS Dell P190St Monitor
24323 CN-0VXV49-72872-222-AULL Dell E2311Hf Monitor
23616 CN-0N0WV7-74261-064-17UL Dell U2311Hf Monitor
21175 Z-21-06027 ADC BTL80-12 Barcode Scanner
10821 U-12-04477 ADC BTL80-12 Barcode Scanner
21157 30 06 07 0661 Metrologic MS6720 Barcode Scanner
11292 T-50-16040 ADC BTL80-12 Barcode Scanner
VLCFA0240 1740147 OBID i-scan HF RFID controller

28032 6GV0RD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO
26301 CND8F8Q7TS HP LaserJet Pro 300 color MFP

26689 2YWGT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26650 2Z2HT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26714 2Z8LT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26723 2Z9LT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26646 2YZKT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26686 2Z4HT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26669 2YVKT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26653 2Z6GT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26729 2Z5LT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26684 2Z1KT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26671 2YTLT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26720 2Z2KT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26725 2YYLT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26730 2Z7KT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26731 2Z7LT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26726 2YVHT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26727 2Z0JT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26667 2Z0MT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

26670 2Z1MT52 Dell Optiplex 9020

44758 5QQRK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

23831 7Y5WMM1 Dell Optiplex 980

26261 2GG8P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

26299 2GH8P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

26294 2GL8P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

26292 2GK7P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

26305 5QRRK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

26264 2G99P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

23962 D5JHKS1 Dell Optiplex 990

26404 CN-0KW14V-74261-481-0LNB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

24644 CN-0VXV49-72872-252-3LVL Dell P2311Hf Monitor

VLCFA0717 CN-0VXV49-72872-24P-3UFL Dell P2311Hf Monitor

23736 CN-0VYTW5-72872-47I-AMMS Dell E2314 Hf Monitor

25375 CN-0KW14V-74261-42Q-4L9B Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26411 CN-0KW14V-74261-481-04UB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

VLCFA0485 CN-0XPG0H-74445-4AN-A9CU Dell E2414 Ht Monitor

VLCFA0535 CN-0KPY95-72872-131-039L Dell P2311Hf Monitor

25434 CN-0KW14V-74261-42Q-4MEB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

25357 CN-0KW14V-74261-42Q-3VUB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

VLCFA0238 C5LMQS051165 Asus Monitor

21227 CN-0CC280-71618-641-AT4Z Dell 1707 Fpt Monitor

CN-0FP816-46633-74R-0CPU Dell 1708 Fpb Monitor

25388 CN-0KW14V-74261-43J-67AB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26402 CN-0KW14V-74261-481-0M1B Dell P2214Hb Monitor
25415 CN-0KW14V-74261-43K-2CHB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26608 CN-0KW14V-74261-563-2M0B Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26631 CN-0KW14V-74261-563-0P6B Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26634 CN-0KW14V-74261-563-1U6B Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26266 2GJ9P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

25248 5R6QK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

26273 2GM7P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

VLCFA0646 3R96GQ1 Dell Optiplex 990

24271 D5SDKS1 Dell Optiplex 990

26307 5QPLK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

25304 5PJRK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

25298 5RCPK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

26290 2GL9P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

25387 CN-0KW14V-74261-42Q-44LB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

23512 Dell P2210Hc Monitor

Page 86 of 92



Found FVRL # Serial Model Notes
26344 CN-0VYTW5-72872-420-ANHL Dell P2314Hf Monitor

25401 CN-0KW14V-74261-43J-6CJB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26407 CN-0KW14V-74261-47N-47FB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26618 CN-0KW14V-74261-563-3DVB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26296 2GC9P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

26267 2GCBP22 Dell Optiplex 7010

VLCFA0727 69R3HQ1 Dell Optiplex 990

26263 2GB9P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

26275 2GN7P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

25299 5PVRK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

25296 5PKPK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

25096 83QT8Z1 Dell Optiplex 3010

28184 8XWPCH2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO

28144 6SNWQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO

28172 6T3XQD2 Dell Optiplex 7440 AIO

26559 CN-0KW14V-74261-563-1W2B Dell P2214Hb Monitor

25424 CN-0KW14V-74261-42Q-4M2B Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26630 CN-0KW14V-74261-563-0NRB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26380 CN-0KW14V-74261-481-0LHB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

25378 CN-0KW14V-74261-43K-2CJB Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26638 CN-0KW14V-74261-563-1U7B Dell P2214Hb Monitor

26265 2GG9P22 Dell Optiplex 7010

25275 5QVPK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

25273 5PMRK02 Dell Optiplex 3010

26484 CNDCH1D0GD HP LaserJet 600 M601

Page 87 of 92



 

  

 

 

 
 
 

  
 

Help support FVRL Foundation during Library Giving Day! Library Giving Day is a fundraising 

event designed to encourage people who depend on and enjoy public libraries to show their 

support. By giving to FVRL Foundation, your donation will go toward the incredible programs, 

services, and materials provided by FVRLibraries. And you don’t have to wait to give for  

Library Giving Day: visit www.fvrlfoundation.org to make a gift today. 

Great News! 
 

 The Foundation was the beneficiary of seven donated local public service announcements 
(valued at $51,256) in The Columbian between November and January. 

 The Foundation’s partnership with ThriftBooks generated $5,392.70 in revenue in February 
from the online sale of used books.  

 The Friends of Woodland Community Library deposited $5,000 into their investment account. 

 Columbia Credit Union has confirmed that it will be the Presenting Sponsor of the 2023 Authors 
& Illustrators Dinner & Silent Auction. 

 

Vol. 15.3: March 2023 

Page 88 of 92

http://www.fvrlfoundation.org/


Upcoming Events 

 

Friday–Sunday, March 17–19 

 White Salmon Friends Book Sale 

White Salmon Community Library, 

10:00am–6:00pm Friday and 

Saturday: $3 bag sale 11:00am–

2:00pm Sunday  

 

Saturday, March 18 

FVRL Trustee Meeting 

Hybrid: Three Creeks Community 

Library and Zoom 

 4:00pm–6:00pm  

 

Thursday, March 23 

FVRL Foundation Board Meeting 

Location TBC 

3:00pm–4:00pm 

 

Saturday, March 25 

 Washougal Friends Book Sale 

Washougal Community Center, 

1681 C St (next to the library) 

9:00am–5:00pm 

 

Thursday, March 30 

Beaches Cash Back Day 

1919 SE Columbia River Dr 

11:00am–9:00pm  

 

Monday, April 17 

FVRL Trustee Meeting 

Hybrid: Washougal Community 

Center (next to the library) and Zoom 

 6:00pm–8:00pm  

 

 
Building Campaigns and 

Cornerstone Pledges 
 

Washougal has 41 Cornerstones,  
1 Stepping Stone, 
 and 4 Keystones. 

 
Woodland has 34 Cornerstones,  

5 Stepping Stones, 8 Keystones, and 
6 Capstones. 

 
*Please note: some Cornerstones have 

graduated to Stepping Stones, which is why 
some Cornerstone totals have decreased. 

 
How Board Members Can Help 

 
–Spread the word about the Fred 

Meyer Rewards program: 
fredmeyer.com/i/community/communi

ty-rewards 

Beaches Cashback Fundraiser to Benefit  
FVRL Foundation 

 
Great food for a great cause! Beaches Restaurant is hosting a 

Cashback Day to benefit FVRL Foundation on  
Thursday, March 30 from 11:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.  

Tell your server you’re dining to support FVRL Foundation and 
50% of your check will be donated back to us.  

Dine-in only; happy hour is eligible, too. 

 
 

Love Your Library is Back! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Show your love for the Woodland Library by attending the  
Love Your Library fundraiser! Proceeds from this event will go 

to the fund to build a new Woodland Community Library.  
We look forward to seeing you there!

 
Page 89 of 92

https://www.fredmeyer.com/i/community/community-rewards
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/fvrl-board-trustees-meeting-46
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/fvrl-board-trustees-meeting-46
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/fvrl-board-trustees-meeting-47
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/fvrl-board-trustees-meeting-47
https://www.fredmeyer.com/i/community/community-rewards


 Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries

2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change
Battle Ground Community Library 39,908 39,491 1.06% 83,514 81,418 2.57%
Cascade Park Community Library 59,434 57,259 3.80% 124,399 118,250 5.20%
La Center Community Library 5,914 5,953 -0.66% 12,032 12,346 -2.54%
Ridgefield Community Library 9,100 8,164 11.46% 19,236 17,423 10.41%
Three Creeks Community Library 45,102 40,195 12.21% 93,826 84,679 10.80%
Vancouver Community Library 51,448 49,402 4.14% 104,904 102,395 2.45%
Vancouver Mall Library 10,761 10,822 -0.56% 23,391 22,324 4.78%
Washougal Community Library 7,597 7,143 6.36% 16,157 14,778 9.33%
Green Mountain Library Express 275 239 15.06% 532 451 17.96%
Yacolt Library Express 4,461 4,328 3.07% 9,229 9,082 1.62%
LibCabinet at Vancouver Mall 0 7 100.00% 0 0 100.00%

Clark County Total 234,000 222,996 4.93% 487,220 463,146 5.20%
Woodland Community Library 5,342 4,246 25.81% 11,385 9,049 25.82%
Yale Library Express 841 733 14.73% 1,791 1,333 34.36%

Cowlitz County Total 6,183 4,979 24.18% 13,176 10,382 26.91%
Goldendale Community Library 6,576 5,736 14.64% 14,046 11,483 22.32%
White Salmon Valley Community Library 9,961 9,325 6.82% 20,762 19,161 8.36%
Klickitat County Bookmobile 1,074 962 11.64% 2,343 1,855 26.31%

Klickitat County Total 17,611 16,023 9.91% 37,151 32,499 14.31%
North Bonneville Community Library 369 342 7.89% 864 786 9.92%
Stevenson Community Library 4,315 4,022 7.28% 9,201 8,152 12.87%
Skamania County Bookmobile 912 1,014 -10.06% 1,894 1,939 -2.32%

Skamania County Total 5,596 5,378 4.05% 11,959 10,877 9.95%
District-wide renewals 198 107 85.05% 390 240 62.50%
Mail 1,088 1,136 -4.23% 2,541 2,288 11.06%
InterLibrary Loan Materials 310 288 7.64% 649 536 21.08%

Misc Total 1,596 1,531 4.25% 3,580 3,064 16.84%
Downloadable eBooks 59,014 51,967 13.56% 123,124 110,474 11.45%
eMagazines 1,405 1,789 -21.46% 3,113 3,674 -15.27%
Downloadable & streaming audiobooks 58,998 47,697 23.69% 123,745 99,906 23.86%
Downloadable & streaming music 23,359 16,560 41.06% 45,162 36,458 23.87%
Streaming video 8,870 7,458 18.93% 18,102 16,305 11.02%

eContent Total 151,646 125,471 20.86% 313,246 266,817 17.40%

TOTAL 416,632 376,378 10.70% 866,332 786,785 10.11%

February Circulation YTD Circulation

Page 90 of 92



1/2

Conscious Consumption series offers tips for
environmentally friendly lifestyles

clark.wa.gov/public-health/conscious-consumption-series-offers-tips-environmentally-friendly-lifestyles

Clark County Public Health is teaming up with Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries for a free

educational series highlighting environmentally friendly lifestyles.

Public Health’s Green Neighbors, Green Schools and Composter Recycler programs, along

with several other community organizations, are partnering with Fort Vancouver Regional

Libraries and Cascade Park Community Library to offer the Conscious Consumption series.

The series features workshops and events for residents of all ages to learn about

sustainability topics, including food waste reduction, worm bin composting, sustainable

fashion, and crafting with recycled materials.

Join Public Health at the Cascade Park Community Library, 600 NE 136  Ave., for the

following events:

Consumption Consequences Board Game for Teens: 2-3 pm Saturday, Feb. 25.

Green Neighbors and Green Schools programs invite teens 12-19 years old to play a fun

board game that educates about the environmental impacts of common purchases.

Recycle 101: 2-3 pm Saturday, March 4. Green Neighbors and partners at the city of

Vancouver explain what items can be recycled in blue curbside carts and what happens

to the items after they're picked up.

Worm Bin Composting: 2-3 pm Saturday, March 25. Composter Recycler experts

teach participants how to compost at home using red worms, turning food scraps into

all-natural fertilizer. Participants will receive supplies for their own worm bin.

Worm Bin Exploration and Decomposer Bingo: 2-3 pm Saturday, April 15.

Green Schools team hosts an interactive bingo game that allows children to get up close

and personal with the invertebrates that help break down waste, including red worms,

spiders and centipedes.

Trashion Show: 2-3 pm Saturday, May 13. Youth 12-19 years old can create a

wearable garment or accessory for the Trashion Show runway or submit artwork for a

gallery show. All entries must be made from reused or recycled materials. All ages are

welcome to attend the show. Registration is required for teens submitting garments,

accessories or artwork for the show.

Visit the Fort Vancouver Regional Libraries event calendar for a complete list of upcoming

Conscious Consumption events, including sessions that teach participants how to use a

sewing machine, hand sew, and craft with recycled items.

th

Page 91 of 92

https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/conscious-consumption-series-trashion-show
https://clark.wa.gov/public-health/conscious-consumption-series-offers-tips-environmentally-friendly-lifestyles
https://fvrl.librarymarket.com/events/upcoming?keywords=Conscious%20Consumption&branches%5B92%5D=92&branches%5B86%5D=86&branches%5B87%5D=87&branches%5B88%5D=88&branches%5B89%5D=89&branches%5B90%5D=90&branches%5B91%5D=91&branches%5B93%5D=93&branches%5B94%5D=94&branches%5B95%5D=95&branches%5B96%5D=96&branches%5B97%5D=97&branches%5B98%5D=98&branches%5B99%5D=99&branches%5B100%5D=100&branches%5B101%5D=101&branches%5B102%5D=102&branches%5B103%5D=103&branches%5B434%5D=434&branches%5B80%5D=80


2/2

To learn more about recycling, composting and reducing waste at home, visit the Green

Neighbors website

 

 

Page 92 of 92

https://clarkgreenneighbors.org/

